Public Document Pack

Witney Town Council

4 Town Hall, Market Square

Mrs Sharon Groth FSLCC fCMgr 4 Witney, Oxon
Town Clerk gg OX28 6AG
* Tel: 01993 704379

Cllr Duncan Enright Fax: 01993 771893
Mayor of Witney E-mail: info@witney-tc.gov.uk

www.witnhey-tc.gov.uk

26™ August 2019

To: Members of the Corn Exchange Working Party - L Ashbourne, O Collins, J Aitman, L Duncan, A D Harvey and

J King (and all other Town Councillors for information)

You are hereby summonsed to a Meeting of the Corn Exchange Working Party to be held in the Council
Chamber, Town Hall on Monday, 2nd September, 2019 at 5.00 pm for the transaction of the business stated

below.
AGENDA
1. Election of Chair
To receive nominations and elect a Chair of this Working Party.
2. Apologies for Absence
To consider apologies and reasons for absence
Working Party Members who are unable to attend the meeting should notify the Town Hall prior to t
meeting, stating the reason for absence.
3. Declarations of Interest
Members are reminded to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in any of the items unc
consideration at this meeting in accordance with the Town Council’s code of conduct.
4, Phase Two Refurbishment (Pages 3 - 50)

To receive and consider the report of the Office Manager on a potential phase two refurbishment of
the Corn Exchange.

SCL\I(-C

Town Clerk

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Agenda ltem: 4

Corn Exchange Working Party

Date: 2" September 2019

Title: Phase Two Refurbishment
Contact Officer: Office Manager (Adam Clapton)
Background

The Corn Exchange phase one refurbishment was completed in 2015 and brought the building back
into public use as a multi-use venue after a four year closure. Future re-development was always
planned and at the time the Council’s long term vision was:

‘To provide an affordable, accessible, comfortable, multi-purpose flexible Community and Arts
Centre for Witney and West Oxfordshire that will have a reputation for excellence.’

There have been a number of comments since that the building lacks any purpose, cannot be ‘all
things to all people’ and as members have previously been advised the number of bookings at the
Corn Exchange has stagnated. As a result and compounded by the issues listed below this working
party has been tasked with finding a solution to:

e A new long-term vision for the use of the Corn Exchange

e Appropriate re-development to facilitate that vision

e Competitive pricing for the Corn Exchange

e Health and safety provision at the Corn Exchange/number of patrons permitted
e Appropriate storage for a public hall of this size

The terms of reference, including objectives and deadlines for the working party were agreed by the
Council on 3™ June 2019 and are attached as Appendix A for information.

Current Position

There are a number of differing views and facts that will need to be taken into consideration in order
for a vision to be established and a well -planned, prepared refurbishment delivered. Below is
information that may be able to help in determining this and who could be involved in further
discussions.

Annual Resident’s Survey 2019

In April the Town Council issued its annual survey to all residents of the town via the Witney
Letterbox magazine. Responses to a particular question asking to rank the importance of future
projects listed the phase 2 development the least important behind the long term future of the Lake
and Country Park and provision of sports facilities. 28% or 80 respondents felt it should be the most
important.

A further question asking to rate satisfaction of the Corn Exchange had the following response.

1
Page 3



Agenda ltem: 4

Excellent 15% (46 responses)
Good 49% (151 responses)
Satisfactory 27% (83 responses)
Poor 9% (26 responses)

Comments regarding the Corn Exchange in this survey included:

e Corn Exchange needs to hold more people

e The building is now a total waste of space

e Used to be widely used. Since doing it up it seems to be less accessible as a community
service

e |still believe it was a huge mistake taking the stage from the Corn Exchange

e Theatre provision as before it was redeveloped

e Lost most of its character when refurbished — put it back!

e Stage and raised seating in Corn Exchange

e Corn Exchange needs nicer softer lighting and more attractive interior

Eventsin 2018

The Public Halls team has worked hard in promoting the Corn Exchange in its current condition and
there have been several large staged events in the Main Hall, some theatre style and other bistro
style. The following table shows a breakdown of bookings in the hall for 2018.

Number of bookings theatre style or similar 22
Number of private parties (bistro style) 7
General non theatre style use 123

If the Working Party were to recommend that fixed seating and a stage should be re-introduced a
number of regular hirers would be affected including; the Specsavers Coffee mornings, Sales
(including Dogs for the Blind and Mynt Image Craft and Gift fairs), Over 30’s disco, Teddy Bears of
Witney show events, WTC Tea Dance, Wrestling and Blood donors some of which may not be able to
continue with reduced floor space. It could also affect the number of weddings/wedding receptions
which are actively being promoted following the purchase of a venue license.

Consultation

A consultation on the future of the building last took place in 2012 and was open to hall users and
the general public. The results of this consultation are included as Appendix B.

As members will be aware, the Corn Exchange is held strongly in the hearts of many Witney
residents and this working party should be mindful that any major decisions on its future are likely to
evoke strong reactions from those who see the building as one thing and those who see it as
another. It would be beneficial to consult as widely as possible on its future at an early stage, Mr
Terry Powell, a seasoned theatrical veteran and former user has already been co-opted and interest
on involvement has been shown from Witney Dramatic Society, Muzo Akademy and WOAPA. The
Council has a subscription with Survey Monkey which can be used and could run an accompanying

2
Page 4



Agenda ltem: 4

paper survey from the Bookings Office and members should consider who else they would like to ask
to be part of this working party.

Conclusion & Key Questions

In discussion with professionals from theatrical companies and with WOAPA it has been intimated
that the Council should have a clear direction and vision for the hall before any professionals can be
brought in to offer drawings, but Jacqui Ibbotson of Oxford Arts who was involved in the initial
discussion and Corn Exchange Trust is willing to talk to the working party and attached is a proposal
from Drama by Design of Newbury on what they are able to offer (Appendix C).

The key point for the Working Party is to decide a vision for the Corn Exchange. What is it going to
be used for? Should it be an Arts Centre? Should it be a Theatre venue? Is it a solely commercial
venue?

Considering its commercial viability the Corn Exchange in its current form is subsidised by Witney tax
payers to the sum of £75,000 per annum. If a theatre were to be installed would
theatre/drama/singing groups etc. come back and use it regularly enough to offset any loss of ‘other’
hire?

Environmental Impact

Having declared a Climate Change Emergency the Council should also consider the impact any future
modifications to the building would have on the environment. The heating and water systems are
only five years and were installed at a considerable cost but there may be some scope in the
possibility of installing solar panels on the roof and looking at water saving measures in the kitchens
and toilets. Likewise, the lighting, acoustics and sound proofing should all be considered moving
forward. However Members should be mindful that the Corn Exchange is a listed building in a
conservation area.

Risk

In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any action it
can take to limit or negate its liability.

Taking into account the sensitivity around this building, previous public perception and that the
refurbishment in 2014 was not widely welcomed as being everything should be done to avoid
damage to the Council’s reputation. Any further development needs to ‘be right’, no promises
should be made before any Council agreement and details on progress and cost should be open and
promoted.

Financial Implications

» This Working Party has no budget. Any financial and budgetary decisions will need to be
agreed by the Halls and Green Spaces Committee. There are earmarked reserves for further
development of the hall but further funding would be required to complete any large-scale
project.

3
Page 5



Agenda ltem: 4

Recommendations
Members are invited to note the report and decide;

» Which individuals, groups and organizations should be invited to join this working party;

» What further information might be needed to create an informed decision on what the
development should comprise, if not at the present time;

» Whether the Council should invite any further professionals to offer quotes for work;

» Whether a detailed survey should be launched for both users and hirers of the Corn
Exchange asking targeted questions about its future. Further consultation should also be
considered;

» If an estimated budget is needed for the forthcoming year 2020-21 and what rolling budget
may be required to deliver refurbishment by 2023-24.

Appendices

Appendix A Corn Exchange Working Party Terms of Reference

Appendix B 2012 Consultation Response

Appendix C Proposal — Drama by Design

Appendix D Corn Exchange Circa 2010 prior to the removal of the fixed stage and retractable
seating

4
Page 6



CEWP 02.09.19 — Agenda Item 5 APPENDIX A

Terms of Reference 9@
Witney Town Council Corn Exchange Working Party o’

Objective

The purpose of this Working Party is to formulate a vision for the long-term future of the Corn
Exchange based on current knowledge, advice from professionals, input from stakeholders and in
consultation with the wider community. In particular, the Working Party should develop a costed
and reasonable plan for the phase two refurbishment of the hall taking into account expected use of
the facilities, needs of the current and prospective users and compliance with all legislation.

Timeframe

The findings and recommendations of the Working Party should be presented to a full meeting of
Witney Town Council by May 2020. Following agreement by full Council any work, research,
investigation and actions to complete the project should be completed by May 2021 and the project
in its entirety should be completed by May 2023.

Constitution

The Working Party falls under the rules of the Town Council’s Standing Orders and will only be
properly constituted once the following criteria have been met:

a) The number of Councillors on the Working Party will be decided at the time of its
appointment i.e. Annual Council Meeting

b) The Chairman of the Working Party will be appointed at its initial meeting and must be a
councillor unless otherwise agreed. The Chairman should also be a member of the Working
Party’s parent committee, Halls and Green Spaces

c) The Working Party must consist of at least 5 Witney Town Councillors

d) A minimum of 3 Town Councillors must be in attendance at each meeting in order for it to
be considered Quorate

e) With the authority of the Full Council the Working Party can co-opt members of the public
who have specific knowledge/expertise on the subject to assist the Working Group and/or
relevant local users and stakeholders. The cost implications pertaining to any professional
assistance will need to be approved by the Town Council’s Policy, Governance & Finance
committee.

f)  An officer of the Town Council should be present at all scheduled meetings and will prepare
minutes to be presented at the next meeting of the Working Party’s parent committee by its
Chairman

g) All Members of Council are to be informed of any meetings of the Working Party; and are
able to attend and ask for any relevant Working Party documentation

h) All meetings of the Working Party are to be fully accessible and open to members of the
public, subject to any items of a confidential nature

i) Meetings will be held on an ad-hoc basis with at least one in each Council cycle

j)  The timing of the meeting shall be judged as appropriate by members of the Working Party

Page 7



CEWP 02.09.19 — Agenda Item 5 APPENDIX A

k) If the work of the Working Party should enter a second year, the Council can re-confirm the
working group’s membership and terms of reference or appoint other elected members to
serve for the forthcoming civic year at the Annual Council Meeting. If this should be the
case, the Working Party remit should be reviewed every six months thereafter

It should be noted that the Working Party or its members cannot make decisions on behalf of
Witney Town Council and any recommendations made will be subject to approval by the Halls and
Green Spaces Committee and the Full Council.

Likewise, although there is funding available for a Phase Two refurbishment from Section 106
contributions and the Council’s earmarked reserves, no monies or funding can be spent or
committed by the Working Party or its members without delegated authority or prior Policy,
Governance & Finance Committee and Full Council endorsement.

Corn Exchange WP Terms of Reference | Version 1 | May 2019

Page 8



Witney Corn Exchange Redevelopment:
Quantifying residents’ enthusiasm for and
potential usage of new facilities

Research Findings & Recommendations

Witney Town Council

July 2012

Prepared by Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd

INSIGHT
OXFORD

TR S O NG

Page 9



CONTENTS

Page No
1 RESEARCH OBIJECTIVES 3
2 PROFILE OF RESPONDENTS 3
3 FINDINGS 4
4 CONCLUSIONS 13
5 RECOMMENDATIONS 15
5 CONTACT DETAILS 16
Page 2 of 16

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd

Page 10



1.

RESEARCH OBJECTIVES

Primary Objectives

Quantify the level of interest and support for various options, identified in phase one of
the consultation process, for the use of the Corn Exchange going forward

Obtain a quantified indication of potential take up/usage of service offerings and
facilities provided via the Corn Exchange

Obtain a quantified indication of how much residents would be willing to spend on
potential service offerings and facilities provided via the Corn Exchange

Identify any major differences and similarities between the expectations, requirements
of various groups of the local population (i.e. age, gender etc)

Secondary Objectives

2.

2.1

Communicate a clear message to Witney residents that the Corn Exchange needs to be
financially self-sufficient in order to.survive (i.e. ‘use it or lose it’).

Provide an opportunity for town councillors, and the Town Council as a whole, to
continue to build a positive profile with Witney residents.

PROFILE OF RESPONDENTS

Survey respondents

Respondents were all Witney residents aged 13 and over.

2.2

Response rate

608 questionnaires were completed - 15% on-line and 85% off-line. This represents a response rate
of about 2% of the Witney population. While this rate appears low, it is not uncommon in the area
of public consultation and provides a solid overview of the views of those who were motivated to

‘have their say’. It should be noted that, during the on-street interviews, a number of residents
themselves were heard to comment that:

“Witney residents can be very apathetic when it comes to this sort of thing”.

A few made comments such as:

2.3

“I thought | should come and have my say as | know people aren’t very good at taking part in

these things.”

Age Profile

The majority of respondents fell into the 26-59 and 60+ age ranges. In total they represented 86% of
those who took part.

Q2. Age - analysis ranges No. %
13-15 18 3%
16-25 60 10%
26-59 281 | 46%
60+ 244 | 40%
No answer 5 1%
Total 608 | 100%

It should be noted that the total number of respondents aged 13-15 (18) was low so caution been
applied when drawing any conclusions about this particular group.

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd

Page 3 of 16

Page 11



2.4 Gender and Marital Status
Slightly more females took part than males.

Q 21. Are you male or female? | Total

Female 54%
Male 44%
No answer 2%

Two thirds of respondents were married, co-habiting or in a long-term relationship and a third were
single.

2.5 Parent/Guardian
30% had at least one child aged 15 or under.

2.6 Work Situation

37% of respondents worked full time, 34% were retired. Together these two groups represented
over two thirds of respondents. A higher proportion of men worked full time while a higher
proportion of women worked part time. These demographics are generally consistent with those of
the Witney population as a whole.

26. What best describes your work situation? | Male Female | Total

Retired 32 35 34%
Student 11 7 9%
Unemployed/not in paid work 2 6 4%
Work full-time 49 28 37%
Work part-time 6 23 16%

In the main, there was a high level of consistency of findings across both genders and all age ranges
from 16 upwards.

3. FINDINGS

The following key findings emerged from analysis of the research data. While these are primarily
based on the quantitative and qualitative data captured via the survey questionnaire, we have also
included anecdotal evidence, where relevant, that was provided through conversations that on-
street interviewers had with residents while conducting the survey.

3.1 Previous Usage

97% of respondents had previously been to the Corn Exchange. 85% had visited at least once within
the last 2 years with 61% having visited within the last 12 months.

The following provides an overview of what respondents had, most recently, been to the Corn
Exchange for:

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd Page 4 of 16

Page 12



% of Respendants

80

70 41— Reasons for visiting the
a0 Tl Corn Exchange

ol T

S0 A

40 A

v

(2]

The cinema had been the most popular activity with 70% of respondents having attended. Other
activities saw much lower usage - the next most popular being amateur theatre (30% attendance).

19% had been to a trainer sale and additional comments confirmed that residents had attended
sales of other goods such as tools, books and arts and crafts.

We asked people to recall what they had paid for entry to the Corn Exchange. 32% had free entry.

Those who did pay had usually gone to see a film and had spent no more than £10 for entry with
42% paying under £5.

W% o Respondants
100 Price Paid for Entry to Corn
a0 Exchange
a0
7a
Ao
50
T = T .__2.._., T
No charge Upto £5 £5-£10 Ower£10 Can't
remember

3.2 Awareness and Engagement

99% of respondents had heard of the Corn Exchange. There was a strong sense that the building
was important to the local community — 95% answered ‘very’ or ‘quite” important - and that there
was a high level of personal interest in its future — 94% answered ‘very’ or ‘quite’ interested.

This was backed by additional comments such as:

“It is good that Witney Town Council are doing this consultation as this is important for the

community — to keep it as a community building rather than serving medium to large
businesses.”

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd Page 5 of 16

Page 13



“It’s part of Witney’s heritage — it must not go”
“Something needs to happen rather than having it as a ‘white elephant’. It’s central to
Witney.”

3.2 Main Function(s)

We asked people to tell us to what extent they supported various ideas for the main function(s) of
the Corn Exchange. These ideas were generated during Phase One of the public consultation.

The four most strongly supported main functions were:

% Very/quite
Functions strong
support
1. Space to rent for social/community events 94%
2. Amateur theatre 88%
3 Independent cinema/art house 79%
4  Professional theatre 77%

With reference to space to rent for social/community events a number of comments illustrated
respondent’s thinking on specific uses, for example:

“Old folk’s dances, family parties, wedding receptions. All these should be charged at a price
anyone can afford”.

“Should be a community centre with special emphasis on the elderly”.

Theatre was a popular option and some appeared to be surprised and delighted to see professional
theatre on the list of potential options making comment such as:

“Oh, professional theatre that really would be great!”
For some the idea of theatre stimulated thoughts about a wider remit:

“would be good to expand options beyond ‘theatre’ to include music/bands, arts and evening
classes”

Many people commented, specifically, about the cinema that was provided previously at the Corn
Exchange. A number of people, mainly in the older age ranges, were quite adamant that this
function was, and should continue to be, the most important function of the Corn Exchange.

“Cinema should be John again”.
“Return of Screen on the Green which provides cinema access at the South end of Witney”

The idea of having a one top shop for Town Hall services and public meetings at Corn Exchange,
although 5% on the overall support ‘ranking’, did meet with the approval of 65% of respondents.
However there was some confusion over what this actually meant.

“I don’t understand — either or both? To replace existing facilities or in addition? Yesto a
place for public meetings.”

Some people we spoke to on-street had mobility issues and were very keen to support any
opportunity to make the Town Hall facilities more accessible given that the current Town Hall is “.a

bit of a nightmare” in that respect.

The least supported options were space to rent for business functions (50%) and small retail units
(18%). However, some respondents suggested:

“Mix of community and private use — one to fund the other”.

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd Page 6 of 16

Page 14



The following graph shows, the percentage of those who expressed their support as ‘very’ or ‘quite’
strong for each function. The further the point is from the centre of the graph, the greater the

support.

Support for Main
Function(s)

/

7.Space to rentfor /

8. Small retail units

1. Spacs to rentfor

social/community
avents

100 -

—Very/quite strongly...

- -.2. Amateur theatra

3. Independent

2ls

business functions %

6. Facilities for under®,

5. One stop shop for

.-~ 4. Professional theatre

/ cinemalArt House

Town Hall sarvicas etc

Facilities for under 21s was shown ‘very’ or ‘quite’ strong support by 63% of respondents. Some
were not always clear about what these facilities would be but others shared quite specific ideas for

example:

“Facilities for under 21s could be drama group or cinema”

“Important to provide a meeting place for young people (teenagers) on the weekend with
music, x-box and low cost refreshments. (Could have vending machines and keep the cost

down)”

“Regular discos, some for younger children, some for teenagers — up to 18 who can’t go to

pubs”

Some additional ideas were suggested for the main function(s) including:

“Creche”
“Tourist office”
“Community cafe”

“Gentleman’s club”

3.4 Specific Facilities

Music/chamber hall”

“Arts centre with music & theatre — multi purpose”

“Move CAB”

Respondents were invited to express their view on the importance of including a range of specific
facilities within the future plans for the Corn Exchange. These, again, were informed by Stage One of

the public consultation process.

Each of the six options were seen as ‘very’ or ‘quite’ important for inclusion in future plans for the
Corn Exchange by 50% or more respondents. The following shows the facilities ranked in order of

perceived importance:

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd

Page 7 of 16

Page 15



Very/Quite Important
Facility %
1. Performance area 94
2. Large floor space 90
3. Exhibition/gallery space 80
4. Kitchen facilities for hire 79
5. Licensed bar 51
6. Cafe/restaurant 50

Comments indicated that the importance of the performance area was strongly linked to the desire
to accommodate theatre as well as live music events.

Some commented that provision of a large floor space could be sufficiently met by the Langdale Hall
and that, together, the two halls could fulfil a range of requirements. For some, there seemed to be
some confusion about the future of this other public hall with speculation that it was “being sold” .

“Large floor space has been marked 'not very important’ on the assumption that the
Langdale will be kept.”

“Good to put the building to good/effective use AND not sell Langdale so the two can be used
in tandem”

Some were particularly supportive of the exhibition/gallery space in relation to supporting the arts:

“| feel strongly that we should have a local arts facility in Witney to keep that side o fthing
local and alive.”

Kitchen facilities for hire were, by many, seen as going ‘hand in hand’ with the well-supported main
function of providing space to rent for social/community events.

There were mixed feeling about providing a bar and cafe/restaurant at the Corn Exchange. Many
expressed concern that there were “already too many cafes and bars” in Witney and that any
addition could impact on the survival of the existing local businesses.

However, a good number of respondents saw value in providing such facilities in order to enhance
the experience when visiting the Corn Exchange, especially for theatre, cinema and live music events
as well as to generate an income stream.

There was an overall consensus that, if bar, cafe or restaurant facilities were included they would
need to be secondary and complimentary to the main function(s) of the building.

There were a number of suggestions for additional considerations such as:
“talks”, “guest speakers” and “lectures”
“Bouncy castle”
“Trampolines”
“Small meeting room”
“DDA very important”
“Use small room for people to see the local police for up to date community information”
“Cafe opening onto Market Square”

“Refreshments throughout the day — also a place to meet friends and relax”

3.5 Activities for Children/Teenagers

We asked parents and guardians to tell us what they thought their children would enjoy and be likely
to use in the future. This was an open-ended question which returned a large number of responses.
While a range of activities were suggested the most popular ideas included:

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd Page 8 of 16

Page 16



e Live bands/music

e Drama/plays/pantomime

e Dance

e Cinema

e Toddler/play groups/soft play
e Youth events

e Parties

3.6 Current Interests and Potential Usage
3.6.1 Current Interests

We asked respondents to tell us how often they visited or used specific types of service and
facilities. These could be anywhere, not just Witney, but the aim was to obtain a picture of
what residents currently do and how frequently.

The following graph shows the various activities sorted by frequency.

e The most frequent activity, on the far left, was visiting a cafe/bar — over half of
respondents (58%) do this fortnightly or more.

e The least frequent activity was hiring a hall or kitchen facility — over half (54%) said
they never did this and an additional 20% said they did this less than once a year.

100 Current Participation in

Activities (anywhere)

Less than once a
year/never

1 1-2 times a year

14-6 times a yr

Monthly

! Fornightly or more

Of those who said they went to see live music, we asked what kind of music they liked to
see. The following shows that rock and pop (61%) is by far the most popular genre followed
by classical (40%). Examples of other kinds of music that people told us they liked were:

“Acoustic evenings.” “Choral” “Witney music festival”
“Hip hop” “R&B” “Metal”

“Community choir” “Cajan/Breton” “Blues”

“Jooles Holland” “Musical theatre” “Irish dance music”

Itis also worth noting that younger people said they went to see live music more frequently
than the over 60s. Conversely, this older group go to independent cinema/art house more
often than the younger age groups.

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd Page 9 of 16

Page 17



195 of Responcdz nts
70 Live Music Preferences
a0
4]
40
a0 61
20 40
34 34
Lo 23
0 —= " < T T T = 1
Rack/pop Classical Folk country Janz Opera
e —
3.6.2 Forecast Usage and Implications

Respondents were asked to forecast how often they would be likely to do various activities if
they were available at the Corn Exchange. We used a frequency threshold of 4 or more
times a year to compare their current activities with their anticipated engagement with

those same activities if provided at the Corn Exchange.

Using the threshold of 4 times or more, previous uptake (16%) and future uptake (10%) in
respect of hiring hall or kitchen facilities appear markedly low. There is a similar picture for

attending or hiring for business functions.

Current % doing activity 4 x per year+ H Potential % doing activity if at CEX

e
N

QO
& &
N S
\\‘{- QO
> &
2
")\(‘
Q’O

Where applicable, we asked respondents why they would choose to do one or more activity
more frequently if they were available at the Corn Exchange. The most common reasons

were preference to stay local (70%) and to support the Corn Exchange (63%).

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd

Page 18

Page 10 of 16



3.7 Potential Income

We asked respondents to indicate how much they would be willing to pay to do various activities at
the Corn Exchange. Most (60%) were not interested in hiring hall/kitchen facilities — shown in the
left hand graph below. For the majority of those who said they would, the price per session -
morning, afternoon or evening - would need to fall into the £20-£40 range. While an even higher
proportion of respondents (73%) were not interested in hiring for business meetings/functions,
those who would indicated that they would be willing to pay £40 or more per session.

Moving to the right hand graph below, in terms of seeing a play, there were a number of comments
indicating that the acceptable price would be very much dependent on the type and standard of
performance. In general the suggestion was that there would be a willingness to pay up to £20 for

professional theatre, possibly more while the acceptable ticket price for amateur theatre £10 or
less. There was a

There was a similar picture in terms of what respondents were willing to pay to see live music.

Again, a number commented that they would pay considerably more to see a well-known ‘headline’
act as opposed to a local band or artist.

Acceptable prices for going to see an independent cinema or art house film were notably lower with
the clear majority (63%) expecting to pay between £5 and £10. Some commented that this would be
in line with other places (e.g. Phoenix in Oxford).

... to hire: ...to see:
100 - 100 - .
90 | £40+ 90 - (E30+
80 | - 80
70 70 £20-£30
60 | £20-£40 60
50
11E£10-£20
=0 40
40 - m£15-£20 30 -
30 20 MES-£10
20 10
10 B Nothing/not 0 - — ——== - munder £
0 . interested Q\'b\\ \){-g\c, 6@'0
H-a“ &/ F_Or s @6\ (}0 B Nothing/not
kitchen business & interested

In terms of exclusive hire (all day and evening) for weddings or other functions, 58% did not see
themselves needing this facility. Of those who did consider this a possibility, the majority (55%)
expected to pay under £500.

3.8 Funding Initial Building Work

We asked respondents how they thought the initial building work, needed for the upgrade of the
Corn Exchange, should be funded. Of the two choices:

The majority (53%) supported the option of a funding partnership of grants and/or private
sponsorship and a one-off increase in Council Tax for Witney residents. However, it should be
noted that the younger age group,16-39, were less supportive of this option (44%) than those aged

40 and over (56%). Males were also slightly stronger supporters of this option (57%) than women
(51%).

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd Page 11 of 16

Page 19



59% of respondents said they would be willing to pay a one-off additional cost in their Council Tax
with most (72%) preferring the lowest £50 option.

Some commented that they would be willing to pay an amount lower than £50, for example £25 or
£30 maximum.

It was this part of the survey that generated a considerable number of comments about the
management of public money and concerns over the Town Council’s track record in this area. For

example:
“One-off is fine, to show interest and part ownership but we’d have to trust the council not to
do it again”
“An increase in Council Tax would not be popular politically but | think that if Witney
residents know the money is being used SPECIFICALLY on the Corn Exchange then it would e
worthwhile.”

“Normally | would support the Council Tax increase but, given the history of Witney Town
Council (incompetence), | don’t trust them to use the money properly They should be
indentifying savings already such as moving out of the Town Hall and using the Langdale
more efficiently. | have yet to see a call for volunteers to assist Witney Town Council.”

“The Corn Exchange is a community facility and the community should be provided with the
facility. Costs should be kept minimal with the project not running, as always with Council
projects, late and over budget. To avoid a ‘one-off payment’ the Corn Exchange has been
neglected for many years and now the Council must finally open their pockets!!!”

“If the Council can afford to waste such a lot of money on Cogges Link Road it should be able
to fund this iconic, pivotal local building.”
Additionally, there were some views expressed about ensuring the investment represents good
value for money:

“Whatever is decided about the function of the Corn Exchange | feel very strongly that the
work should be of a high quality/finish and last for generations to come — not date in 10
years time”.

Some additional and alternative ideas were put forward regarding initial and on-going funding:
“Fundraising by local residents”
“Social Enterprise/ not for profit arrangement”.
“Opportunity for residents to buy shares”

“Voluntary donations and fundraising activities would be appropriate and maintain
interest/support. Public might be offended by the ‘high’ rate of the lowest suggested [one-
off] suggested [increase in Council Tax] - £50.”

“Offer annual membership/subscription charge [like the Phoenix and other Art Houses]”
“Pointless having two halls so should sell the Langdale”

“There is sufficient funds held in reserve by WODC and that money should be utilised for
projects such as this.”

Some people were also keen to have their say about the approach to the building design itself:
“Appropriate To retain historic style and decor. Might be a market hall, glass roof in situ be

utilised, e.g. roof garden/ conservatory. E.g. Saturday morning coffee concerts with young
local budding musicians”

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd Page 12 of 16

Page 20



4,

CONCLUSIONS

There appears to be a strong interest in, and concern about, the future of the Witney Corn Exchange
amongst residents. There is a desire to maintain the building from both a historical and community
perspective.

There is little appetite for making the building available to commercial businesses either in terms of
usage or ownership. However, there is support for inviting some financial sponsorship, to help fund
the initial building work, from the local business community.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Previous Usage

There had been quite strong engagement with the Corn Exchange by respondents with
almost all having previously visited the Corn Exchange and the majority in the last 12
months. Cinema was by far the most popular activity followed by amateur theatre. Sales of
various kinds had also been reasonably popular.

It was not always necessary to pay for entry with almost a third of respondents entering the
Corn Exchange free of charge. Most who paid had gone to see a film, paying less than £5 or
certainly no more than £10.

Awareness and Engagement

There were very high levels of awareness of the Corn Exchange and interest in its future.
The vast majority also saw it being very important to Witney’s local community.

Main Functions

Space to rent for social and community events

There is very strong support for including space to rent for social and community events as a
main function of the building. However, in contrast, the potential demand for hire of hall
and kitchen facilities appears very limited. In terms of income, the acceptable fee level is
£20-£40 per session.

Amateur and professional theatre and music performances

There is a strong level of support for, and interest in, the provision of amateur and
professional theatre. For this reason there may be value in considering these as linked
functions, from a building plan perspective. That said the ongoing financial landscape, in
respect of income and expenditure, will be quite different for these two types of theatre.
That is, acceptable ticket prices will be lower for amateur theatre and considerably higher
for professional shows.

Not only is the support high for both types of theatre function, but the demand for ‘going to
see a play’ also appears strong. Current and estimated participation in terms of going to see
a play demonstrates that there is a reasonable amount of potential uptake for this service
offering if provided at the Corn Exchange.

However, given the comments suggesting price sensitivity around standard and type of
production, it may be advisable to conduct further research to gain a more detailed
understanding of the types of theatre productions that would be popular and cost-effective.
Further, to identify a pricing structure that fits with the on-going financial strategy for the
building.

Going to see live music, especially rock/pop and classical, is clearly a popular pastime of
current Witney residents and something that many think they would do more often if
available at the Corn Exchange. Accommodating live music performances would cater for a
diverse age range from under 21s to the more mature residents.

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd Page 13 of 16

Page 21



4.4

Independent Cinema or Art House

The inclusion of an independent cinema or art house, as a main function of the Corn
Exchange, is supported strongly. This appears to stem from the considerable enthusiasm for
the cinema facility previously provided in the building and, for some, the major
disappointment that this had moved elsewhere.

Current and estimated future engagement with independent cinema/art house provision
shows that there is a reasonable amount of potential uptake for this service offering. This
would rely on tickets being priced between £5 and £10. Consideration also needs to be
given the local competition in the shape of the multiplex cinema at Marriot’s Walk.

Identifying the most appropriate types of films to show was outside the scope of this
research but this would, of course, have a bearing on uptake and occupancy levels.

Other Main Functions
e One stop shop for Town Hall services and public meetings
» Facilities for under 21s
e Space to rent for business functions
o Small retail units

The options of having a one stop shop for Town Hall services and public meetings at the
Corn Exchange and providing facilities for the under 21s both appear to command a
reasonable level of support. However, some were concerned that they did not fully
understand the implications of these options and more detailed information may need to be
provided to accurately gauge public opinion.

A slim majority support the idea of providing space to rent for business functions but there
appears to be a very low level of future demand for this.

The vast majority of respondents gave very limited support to the idea of accommodating
small retail units within the Corn Exchange.

Specific Facilities

Strong to reasonable levels of importance are attached to all six facilities identified via Phase
One of the consultation. The performance area and large floor space are the most strongly
supported although there are some questions outstanding about whether the latter could
be provided via the Langdale Hall. There is some confusion about the future of this other
public hall making it difficult for people to provide an informed choice. On this note it is
evident that some are keen for the Corn Exchange and Langdale Hall to work ‘in tandem’ to
provide all facilities that are needed.

Exhibition and gallery space is seen by many as an important part of what could be multi-
functional arts and community venue. Indeed, some have an interest in exhibiting their own

artwork in the building.

Kitchen facilities for hire are seen, by many, as going ‘hand in hand’ with the well-supported
main function of providing space to rent for social and community events. However, the
potential uptake in terms of bookings appears to be very limited and this should be taken
into consideration in respect of return on investment.

The cafe, restaurant and bar facilities appear to be a more complex area to ‘unpick’ in terms
of quantifying support and demand. While some feel strongly that these would be
unnecessary and impact on the survival of other such facilities it the town, others see that
these are necessary to providing an ‘all round’ experience when visiting to see theatre,
cinema or a live music performance. Some were keen to see a cafe with tables and chairs on
the market square.

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd Page 14 of 16

Page 22



Exclusive hire of the Corn Exchange building (for a wedding or private function) met with
interest from over half the respondents. However, the opportunity to charge more than
£500 for this type of hire would be fairly limited. That said, some people were keen to point

out that this would depend on the overall quality, standard of refurbishment and layout of
the building.

Parents and guardians are of the opinion that their children and teenagers would enjoy a
range of activities that, to a large extent, could be provided using the same functions and
facilities favoured by adult residents. These include live music, drama, plays, dance and

cinema. Facilities for toddlers and youth events are also ideas to be noted but had fewer
mentions.

45 Funding

While a slim majority of those who ‘had their say’ support the option of a partnership
approach to funding the initial building work (i.e. grants, private sponsorship and a one-off
increased Council Tax payment) it is important to note that this may not be representative of
the Witney population as a whole. Given that most of the respondents will have chosen to
complete the survey because they are actively interested in the future of the Corn Exchange,
it is advisable to assume that they are more willing to pay towards its upgrade than those
who chose not to ‘have their say’.

There was a contrast between the views of younger and older age groups in relation to the
initial funding. While the majority of older (40+) residents are comfortable paying £50 as a
one-off additional payment in their Council Tax, this is a less popular idea with those aged 39
and under. This is likely to be linked, broadly, to levels of disposable income. Of those who
were willing to pay, some were concerned that other may not be able to afford to. Some
suggested that this could be an optional rather than obligatory payment with further options
to pay more if desired. Of those willing to pay additional Council Tax there is a fairly
pronounced ceiling of £50 across the board.

There is clearly an issue around trust for some residents, particularly in the 40+ age range
with strong views that financial matters have not been managed well by the Town Council in
the past. While some appear to be wholly disillusioned others are looking for positive

evidence that key aspects of their community, such as the Corn Exchange, are in ‘in safe
hands’.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is suggested that provision of small retail units be removed from the short-list of main functions
due to the very low levels of support indicated through this research.

Using the findings from this survey along with any other relevant data, we suggest conducting an
objective analysis, such as SWOT (strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats) for each of the
main functions that are short-listed. It will be critical to include as detailed financial information as
possible in order to compare the cost of provision versus potential income. Ideally, this will be

considered in conjunction with the overall financial strategy for the Corn Exchange and other public
halls.

Given that Witney is currently undergoing a period of rapid change it is recommended that decisions
and forecasting, relating to the Corn Exchange, be informed by the most up to date demographic
information as possible. It should be noted that the 2011 census information will soon be available
and this could provide valuable data to inform relevant strategies.

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd Page 15 of 16

Page 23



During the research process some residents mentioned a number of other buildings, like the Corn
Exchange, situated in other communities that appeared to be run successfully, these included
Chipping Norton Theatre and the Newbury Corn Exchange. There may be value in researching such
venues in order to learn and share ideas to inform the plans for the upgrading and management of
the Corn Exchange. Particular focus could be placed on those venues situated in communities with a
similar demographic profile to Witney.

To address the issues around residents’ low levels of trust in the Town Council, there is a case for
committing to a high level of transparency around the financial aspect of upgrading the Corn
Exchange and especially in relation to ‘ring fencing’ any monies generated for this purpose directly
from residents. The Corn Exchange project provides a valuable opportunity for the Town Council to
rebuild the trust of Witney residents. As a starting point the topline findings from this research
could be communicated directly to Witney residents, if deemed appropriate.

There is potential to research and appraise the feasibility of alternative and additional sources of
income to help with the initial building costs of the Corn Exchange as follows:

e Private sponsorship

e Grants

e Lottery funding

e Optional council tax increase(s)

e Give residents opportunity to purchase shares
e Local fundraising activities

In addition to the above ideas, in terms of securing income streams to help the on-going financial
sustainability of the building, the following are suggested for consideration and further exploration:

e Give members of the public the opportunity to purchase annual membership (possibly
leading to discounts)

e Potential to include a social enterprise model for cafe, bar and/or restaurant function to
generate income and contribute to the local community

These research findings highlight the fact that Witney residents have diverse and sometimes
contrasting interests and take part in a variety of leisure and community activities. The general
consensus is that the Corn Exchange should serve the community through the provision of a range of
functions and a number of specific facilities. In terms of the financial sustainability of the building
the research findings provide a starting point to understand residents’ pricing thresholds and
expectations. Further research and analysis may be necessary to help build a fully informed,
pragmatic financial strategy for the Corn Exchange.

Once the final building plans have been agreed it will be critically important to identify, specifically, a
workable range of service offerings (e.g. categories of film, types of play and genres of live music)

to give the best chance of maximum uptake by as many groups and ages of the community as
possible. Additionally it will be important to develop an effective marketing and communications
strategy to ensure all residents know what activities are on offer, thereby maximising occupancy.
This research provides a starting point for both these activities but further research may be
necessary to help inform the service provision and marketing plans.

6. CONTACT DETAILS
For further information please contact:
Louise Wheeler

Landline: 01865 596771
Mobile: 0778 6925969
Email: louise.wheeler@insightoxford.co.uk

Insight Oxford (Consulting) Ltd Page 16 of 16

Page 24



CORN EXCHANGE VISION STATEMENT

Summary

Witney is the largest town in West Oxfordshire with a population of 27,500 representing a
quarter of the districts total population. It is growing in importance as a destination shopping
and entertainment centre not just for West Oxfordshire but also for adjacent districts
following recent large retail developments in the town.

The Corn Exchange is an important historical building in a prominent site on the market
square. The Town Council wants to re develop the building as modern community arts centre
for the benefit of the residents of Witney and West Oxfordshire as well as an attraction for
visitors to the town and surrounding area.

A community arts centre would be a welcome addition to the night life of Witney which
already has a new multi screen cinema. It would encourage shoppers to stay longer in the
town in the evening and be a positive factor in encouraging new companies and their staff to
locate to Witney and its environs.

History

The Corn Exchange was built in 1863 for the sale of corn at the weekly market. From the
outset it was used for social events and meetings as well as corn-dealing and housed several
clubs and societies. It was bought in 1911 by the urban district council and used as offices
until 1936. In 1970 it became a grade II building by which time is in a very bad state of repair.

Under local government reorganisation in 1974 the Corn Exchange controversially became
the property of the new West Oxfordshire District Council for use as offices. But a local
petition to get the Corn Exchange returned to public use resulted in it being sold to the Town
Council in 1976 to be used as a public hall. It was opened in 1979 with rooms for hire and
folding seats were installed in the old corn dealing floor in 1992.

Vision

To provide an affordable, accessible, comfortable, multi-purpose flexible Community
and Arts Centre for Witney and West Oxfordshire that will have a reputation for
excellence

To be an exciting and inspirational arts and community centre that helps maintain the vitality
of the south end of the High Street as a counter weight to the new shopping development at
Marriots Close.

To encourage and foster activities of all types such as amateur and professional theatre, music
making and entertainment, specialist cinema, exhibitions, social and commercial functions.
The Council is keen to foster specialist cinema as a complement to the commercial cinema in
town

To have an open and welcoming appearance onto the market square, to encourage people to
walk in, to visit and participate in events and exhibitions in the day time as well as
entertainment in the evenings.

Page 25



To foster annual arts events to help promote tourism and the profile of Witney as an important
town in the region. An example is the recently established Witney Film Festival which
screens independent films by local and international film makers.

To contribute to community development by working with local organisations such as
schools, Witney & Abingdon College and local charities particularly for the young people.

To establish a charitable trust to develop and operate the Corn Exchange and to complete the
redevelopment by 2015.

Main Hall
The key to the vision is a large and flexible space able to cater for a range of types of events.

The hall must be easily transformed from an auditorium into a flat open space suitable for
charitable fund raising events, commercial conferences and exhibitions, social events such a
dinners and dances as well as instructional classes and public service activities.

The theatrical facilities should be of a sufficiently high standard to attract professional theatre
and entertainment companies to the Town. There must be provision for theatrical lighting,

sound systems and cinema projection.

To enable maximum use of the facilities it will be important to be able to convert the main
hall from an amphitheatre to a flat floor quickly with easy access for equipment and furniture
to be moved in and out of the hall and stored if necessary.

Exhibition Area, Café, Bar and Gallery Room
The Council visualises an area that would host changing exhibitions throughout the year.

To encourage local clubs, societies, voluntary groups and museums to exhibit their work as a
shop window onto their activities. Local firms might also be encouraged to promote
themselves through exhibitions of their work and skills.

This area should be easily accessible from the street to encourage people to just “drop in” and
could incorporate a café bar. A full catering kitchen is not envisaged as necessary.

The upstairs stairs gallery room is an important feature that the Council would want to remain
as a room suitable for civic receptions, town council meetings and other similar events. Other
smaller rooms would be useful for meetings and for voluntary groups, charities and others to
use on a temporary basis when running events at the centre.

15th Dec 2012
(amended 17 Dec 2012)

Page 26



Document is Restricted

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Phase Two Refurbishment
	Agenda Item 4, Appendix A
	Agenda Item 4, Appendix B
	Agenda Item 4, Appendix C
	Agenda Item 4, Appendix D


